
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday, 4th August, 2020 at 2.30 pm.

Site Visits

There are no site visits on this occasion.

A G E N D A

VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.

Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting to the Barrow Borough Council YouTube 
Channel which can be viewed live via the link below.

The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items.

To view the meeting online click this link

PART ONE 

1.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

2.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

3.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

4.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

5.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 14th July, 2020.

5 - 8

7.  Public Participation

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 12 noon, three working days 
before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.  Information on 
how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning 
Business Support Team at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by 
telephone on 01229 876405.
 
(1) Planning Applications – for which requests to speak have been 

made; and
 
(2) Agenda items – for which requests to speak have been made.

8.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)

To note the delegated approvals.

9 - 20

FOR DECISION 

(D) 9.  Planning Applications (Booklet attached)  

To determine the following planning application:-

Installation of a sculpture to mark the start/finish of the Bay Cycle 
Way on Land at Sandy Gap Lane, Barrow-in-Furness

21 - 40

(D) 10.  Deferred Application (Booklet attached)  

To determine the following planning application that had been 
deferred at the previous meeting:-

Minor material amendment at proposed Housing site - Crompton 
Drive, Dalton-in-Furness

41 - 68

(D) 11.  Removal of Enforcement Notice on Land at Quarry Side/Quarry 
Lodge, Dalton-in-Furness  

To agree the withdrawal of the Enforcement Notice.

69 - 72

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk


NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30 pm.)

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Burley
D. Edwards
Gawne
Hall
Husband
McEwan
Mooney
Nott
Seward
C. Thomson (Vice-Chair)
M. A. Thomson (Chair)

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer (Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday 27th July, 2020



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 14th July, 2020
at 2.30 pm. (Virtual Meeting)

PRESENT:- Councillors M. A. Thomson (Chairman), C. Thomson (Vice-Chairman), 
Assouad, Burley, D. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Husband, McEwan, Nott, Preston and 
Seward.

Officers Present:- Charles Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), Maureen Smith 
(Principal Planning Officer), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance & 
Monitoring Officer), Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - Member 
Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer).

8 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

An apology for absence had been received from Councillor Mooney. 

Councillor Preston had attended as a substitute for Councillor Mooney for this 
meeting only.

9 – Declarations of Interest

Councillors Gawne and McEwan declared an interest in any matter relating to 
Cumbria County Council as they were Members of that Council.

10 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd June, 2020 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

11 – Public Participation

RESOLVED:- Mr Moore addressed the Committee as an objector in relation to the 
Planning Application for the proposed Housing Site at Crompton Drive, Dalton-in-
Furness (Minute No. 15 refers). No deputations or petitions had been received in 
respect of the meeting.

12 – Terms of Reference

RESOLVED:- To note the revised Terms of Reference for the Planning Committee.

13 – Appeal decision relating to land adjacent to the Methodist Church on 
Hartington Street, Barrow-in-Furness (ref. 2019/0291)

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) submitted a report 
regarding an appeal decision relating to land adjacent to the Methodist Church on 
Hartington Street, Barrow-in-Furness (Ref: 2019/0291).  A copy of the Appeal 
Decision had been appended to the report.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



It had been noted that outline planning consent had been refused for the re-
development of land adjacent to the Methodist Church on Hartington Street for 
residential use with all matters reserved.  The site was a small area of open space 
which had previously been used for informal recreation and had become overgrown.  
Prior to the application, a row of trees along one side had been cut down.  The 
illustrative scheme had indicated five, three bed 2.5 storey terraced town houses.

The appeal had been dismissed and the Planning Inspector’s comments in relation 
the open space, bio-diversity and green infrastructure policies and SPD had been 
welcomed.  This had been an important appeal decision so soon after the adoption 
of the new Local Plan and had given weight going forward to the Borough’s open 
space, bio-diversity and green infrastructure policies, as well as the draft 
supplementary documents currently being prepared.  The Inspector had also 
recognised the Council’s five year housing supply and the fact that terraced housing 
would add little to the mix of housing in the Borough.  

RESOLVED:- To note the contents of the appeal decision letter.

Town and Country Planning Acts

14 – Delegated Decisions

The Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment submitted for 
information details of planning applications in this report which he had determined 
under delegated authority (Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 
2002, confirmed by Council 24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for 
your information.  The plans recommended for approval under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts will be subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 
(April 1971) of the Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough 
Council, in addition to any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) 
beside the applicant’s name denotes those applications that were reported to the 
Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

2020/0264 Erection of single storey side and rear extension at 83 Yarlside Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0198 Extension to existing garage, construction of a new utility room to rear 
of existing garage, construction of new porch with covered area at 9 
Kirkby Close, Askam-in-Furness.

2020/0254 Provision of emergency escape ramp to north west corner of building 
at Risedale Gospel Hall, Risedale Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0272 Application for Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) for a hip to gable loft conversion and the 
creation of new skylights to provide extra useable living space at 89 
Sutherland Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



2020/0304 Single storey pitched roof wrap around rear and extension forming 
sun room and utility at 12 Lakeland Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0215 Proposed rear conservatory at 57 Foxfield Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0296 Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning 
permission 2019/0323 (Single storey rear and side mono pitched 
extension forming dining room, utility room and shower room) 
(Resubmission 2018/0241) to reduce the distance from the boundary 
with 21 Meadowlands Avenue and the approved extension from 
300mm to 150mm at 19 Meadowlands Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0290 Change of use of detached storage building to north of Abbey Manor 
to dog grooming salon at Abbey Manor, Abbey Approach, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2020/0278 Single storey side extended kitchen at 67 John Street, Askam-in-
Furness.

2020/0344 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 7 
(Verification report for Plots 5 & 6) of planning permission 2016/0126) 
(Residential Development of Dwellings) at Hayeswater  Drive, Dalton-
in-Furness.

2020/0223 Advertisement consent to display 2 no. externally illuminated fascia to 
front and side elevations, 4 no. ACM signs and 4 lockable poster 
cases 110 Mill Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0238 Single storey rear extension to accommodate new kitchen, dining 
room and seating area at 18 Parklands Drive, Askam-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Planning Manager reported on the following planning applications:-

15 – Proposed Housing Site, Crompton Drive, Dalton-in-Furness

From Moorsolve Pension Scheme in respect of an application for a Minor 
Amendment following the grant of planning permission B07/2018/0089 (Construction 
of 11, 3 and 4 bed houses including roads and sewers) to provide a revised access 
to plots 6 and 7 involving a new access onto Abbey Road and which shall carry the 
proposed public right of way at Proposed housing site, Crompton Drive, Dalton-in-
Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0778.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Mr Moore addressed the Committee as an objector.

It was moved by Councillor M A Thomson and seconded by Councillor C Thomson 
to defer consideration of this application since the Committee had been minded to 
refuse the application as the formation of a new vehicular access would harm the 
character of the green wedge and would thereby conflict with Local Plan Policy GI2.  
It had also been requested that a virtual site visit be facilitated by the Planning 
Officer and presented to Members virtually, prior to the next meeting.  A roll call was 
undertaken and it was,

RESOLVED:- To defer consideration of the application since the Committee had 
been minded to refuse the application as the formation of a new vehicular access 
would harm the character of the green wedge and thereby conflict with Local Plan 
Policy GI2.

The meeting closed at 2.57 pm.
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

04/08/2020

01/07/2020

22/07/2020

Page 9

Agenda Item 8

lmoscrop
Typewritten text
           Director of People and Place 

lmoscrop_1
Typewritten text
 



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B18/2020/0060

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/07/2020

Location:
Larkin Engineering Services Ltd, Walney Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,LA14 5UY

Proposal:
Change of use from a general industrial (B2) to
mixed general industrial and tool and
equipment/plant hire (sui-generis), including the
erection of steel portal framed workshop/storage
building and location of a portaloo style toilet
facility (re-submission of 2018/0783 in a revised
form)

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B28/2020/0170

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
10/07/2020

Location:
Vicarage Mount Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for works to Sycamore Tree - prune
from adjacent structure to achieve 1m clearance
(numbered T1267 on plan) subject of Tree
Preservation Order 1972 NO. 2

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B23/2020/0256

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/07/2020

Location:
St Georges House Salthouse Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 2JJ

Proposal:
Listed Building Consent for alteration to timber
staircase, removal of 2no. stairs, extension of
landing and installation of 2no. 2-step stair sets to
create bifurcated stair, new sections of stud wall
and alteration to internal door arrangement.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B22/2020/0306

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
02/07/2020

Location:
Furness Cricket Club Oxford Street Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 5PR

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display 2 non illuminated
pvc fascia signs to gable end facing Oxford Street
(sponsor adverts)

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0311

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/07/2020

Location:
7 Dendron Close Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8XF

Proposal:
Erection of a rear living room and bedroom
extension with side bedroom extension - re-
submission of 2019/0427

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0323

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
14/07/2020

Location:
10 Thirlmere Close, Dalton-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA15 8QS

Proposal:
Construction of detached outbuilding to rear of
property.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B20/2020/0330

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/07/2020

Location:
138 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA14 1DJ

Proposal:
Change of use of vacant ground floor shop to a
one bedroom flat - re-submission of
B20/2020/0005

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0317

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
14/07/2020

Location:
38 Derbyshire Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 5NB

Proposal:
Demolish existing garage and replace with a
garage and attached shed.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0252

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
10/07/2020

Location:
32 Verdun Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3LB

Proposal:
Single storey side extension forming extended
kitchen

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0220

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
17/07/2020

Location:
37 Amphitrite Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3AR

Proposal:
Erection of a two storey extension forming ground
floor garage and extended first bedroom 1 and
extended bathroom at first floor level and a rear
single storey extension forming a sunroom.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0322

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
17/07/2020

Location:
1 Infield Crescent, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 9JP

Proposal:
Proposed rear single storey infill extensions and
new pitched roof structure in lieu of existing flat
roof structure to southeast elevation.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B22/2020/0221

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
01/07/2020

Location:
Co-operative Retail Services 307-309 Abbey Road
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5LF

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display;
1 No. Single sided built up logos
1 No. 600mm Dia. new car park sign
2 No. Banner Frames
1 No. 600mm single sided car park sign
1 No. 600 x 600mm flat aluminium panel (Goods
Delivery)
1 No. Totem with dark grey header panels and
blue faced built up logo
1 No. 600mm single sided car park sign
1 No. heritage projection sign through individual
3D letters to both sides of mounting plate
1 No. single sided car park sign (bicycle)

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/0291

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
03/07/2020

Location:
Land adjacent to 10 Marsh Street Askam-in-
Furness Cumbria LA16 7BE

Proposal:
Approval of conditions No. 4 (Field Investigation
and Risk Assessment), No.6 (Hard surfaced
areas), No.7 (Bat and Bird boxes), No.8 (Drainage
Design) for planning application B13/2019/0805
(Erection of a single storey 2 bedroom detached
bungalow (Resubmission of B13/2019/0206 in a
revised form))

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B18/2020/0293

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/07/2020

Location:
Holker Old Boys Club Rakesmoor Lane Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 4QB

Proposal:
Single storey flat roofed side extension for use as
a committee room
Provision of a disabled ramp for access to the club
house.
Provision of a unisex disabled WC/baby changing
facilities for spectators in leu of existing committee
room

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0325

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
10/07/2020

Location:
Bali Hai Ann Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8BG

Proposal:
Demolition of existing conservatory and external
staircase; construction of new single storey rear
living/kitchen/dining extension and single storey
side utility extension; enlargement of bay window;
external and internal remodelling/alteration (Re-
submission of B21/2019/0708).

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0356

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
22/07/2020

Location:
60 Victoria Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 5JU

Proposal:
Erection of single storey wrap-around side and
rear extension to provide store,
kitchen/living/dining area and shower room.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0231

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
22/07/2020

Location:
West Garth Newton Cross Road Newton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA13 0NB

Proposal:
Proposed loft conversion forming 2 additional
bedrooms and en-suite bathroom, construction of
new porch, provision of new pitched roof to garage
in lieu of existing flat roof

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B26/2020/0279

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
17/07/2020

Location:
Keral House Teasdale Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3SE

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of
Proposed Use or Development (CLOPUD) for the
erection of a concrete sectional double garage

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B28/2020/0327

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
07/07/2020

Location:
Abbotswood Cottage Abbey Road Dalton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA13 0PB

Proposal:
Application for works to trees subject of Tree
Preservation Order 1990 No. 12 - to remove
branches of two beech and three lime trees which
overhang Mill Brow Lodge.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B21/2020/0241

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/07/2020

Location:
44 Dalton Fields Lane Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8NY

Proposal:
Demolition of existing attached single storey side
building; construction of new single storey side
extension containing dining room and utility room;
construction of two storey rear extension forming
enlarged living room study and bedrooms; internal
alterations to form additional bedroom
(Resubmission of B21/2019/0748 to a revised
scheme)

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0239

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
14/07/2020

Location:
34 Glenridding Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4PE

Proposal:
Two storey side extension, single storey rear
extension and internal alterations forming
extended kitchen/dining room, additional sitting
room and additional bedroom

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0351

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
22/07/2020

Location:
7 Poplar Bank, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13
0RB

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 04/08/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0358

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
29/06/2020

Location:
Booker Bouthwood Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4RB

Proposal:
Removal of existing asbestos sheeting and
replace with insulated metal profiled cladding.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0408

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
09/07/2020

Location:
6 Chapel Field Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3RQ

Proposal:
Removal of structural stud wall between
kitchen and lounge and enlarge existing door
opening.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
09/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0409

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
09/07/2020

Location:
24 Ilkley Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5LP

Proposal:
Enlarge kitchen into outer store and thermally
upgrade walls and ceiling. Create doorway
into outside WC.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
09/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0394

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
06/07/2020

Location:
22 Chaucer Way Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9UA

Proposal:
Removal of part load bearing wall between
kitchen and living room.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
06/07/2020

Page 16

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 04/08/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0286

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
12/05/2020

Location:
21 Cheltenham Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5HP

Proposal:
Single storey extension forming enlarged
kitchen and dining room.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
09/07/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0288

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
12/05/2020

Location:
Building A31 BAE Systems Bridge Road
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1AF

Proposal:
General refurbishment works.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
10/07/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0005

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/06/2020

Location:
138 and 138a Cavendish Street Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 1DJ

Proposal:
Conversion of ground floor shop into 1
bedroom flat and alterations to existing first
floor flat.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/07/2020

Reference
Number:
RA/2020/0369

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
24/06/2020

Location:
6 Harrogate Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5JE

Proposal:
Replacement of 2 windows and front door.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
07/07/2020

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 04/08/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0392

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
06/07/2020

Location:
100 Hollow Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9HY

Proposal:
Create structural opening for door between
kitchen and living room.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
06/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0393

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
06/07/2020

Location:
17 Latona Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3QS

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
06/07/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0191

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
21/05/2020

Location:
24 Piel Street Roa Island Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0QJ

Proposal:
Two storey side extension and remodel to
existing semi detached property.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
03/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0405

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
08/07/2020

Location:
44 Prince Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8EU

Proposal:
Thermally insulate basement to create a
bedroom.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
08/07/2020

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 04/08/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0282

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
05/05/2020

Location:
42 Dane Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4JY

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension forming large
kitchen/dining space and ground floor wet
room.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
02/07/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0333

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/06/2020

Location:
Holker Street Ground Wilkie Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 5UW

Proposal:
Erection of a lightweight steel roof structure to
the Holker Street Terrace

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
13/07/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0385

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
02/07/2020

Location:
51 Dane Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4JY

Proposal:
Utility room extension and re-roof of garage.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
02/07/2020

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

PLANNING COMMITTEE

FOR DECISION

4th August 2020

Ladies and Gentlemen,

The applications within this report have been submitted for determination
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation.

All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council,
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council.

The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of
background papers.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later than
12 noon, three working days before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.
Information on how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning Business Support Team
at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01229 876405..

Jason Hipkiss

Development Services Manager
(Planning and Enforcement)

Page 1 of 20

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



B18/2020/0091 
Planning Committee 

4
th
 August 2020   

  

  

Application Number : B18/2020/0091 Date Valid :10/02/2020 

Address : Land at Sandy Gap Lane 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Installation of a sculpture to mark the start/finish of the Bay Cycle Way 

Ward : Walney North Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant :  Morecambe Bay Partnership  Agent : Steve Abbott Associates LLP  

Statutory Date : 06/04/2020 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018  Paragraph 092 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018  Paragraph 127 

Saved Local Plan Policies 
 
Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 

sustainable development 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 

Criteria 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS6 - Landscaping 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N1 - Protecting and enhancing 

landscape character 

 

 

Page 2 of 20

Page 22

Agenda Item 9

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B18/2020/0091


Summary of Main Issues 

Whilst recognising that public art can be a subjective matter, the main issue raised by this 
application is whether the proposed installation is appropriate within its setting and the wider 
landscape. 

Non raised 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

 
No neighbours listed as consulted 
  

Responses Support Object Neutral 

7 0 5 2 

Development advertised on site and in the local press. 

Summary of objections 

The objections received were very similar raising the following themes: 

 Incorrect form of application (stated it should be for Advertisement Consent) 
 Cluttered appearance in combination with other approved development 
 Impact on visual amenity/landscape 
 The design may create noise (it has potential to act as a wind harp) 
 Lack of landscaping 
 Impact on place of significance 
 Design of the sculpture inappropriate - scale/placement/materials. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (PROW) 
Natural England 
   

 

 

 

Page 3 of 20

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



List of Organisation Responses 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 16/03/2020  

"Thank you for your consultation on 12/02/2020 regarding the above Planning Application. 

Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 

Highway response 

The layout details shown on the submitted plan are considered satisfactory from a highway 
perspective. I can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority has no objection to the 
proposed development. 

However, a PROW (public footpath) number 601021 lies adjacent to the site, the Applicant 
must ensure that no obstruction to the footpath occurs during, or after the completion of the 
site works.  

Reason: To support Local Transport Plan Policy W1, W2.  

Any works within the Highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority. 

No works and/or any person performing works on any part of the Highway, including Verges, 
will be permitted, until in receipt of an appropriate permit allowing such works. Enquiries 
should be made to Cumbria County Councils Streetworks team.” 

 
 Cumbria County Council (PROW) 18/02/2020  

The proposed development would obstruct the legally defined alignment of a public footpath 
which is numbered 601021 therefore it must not be consented. The legally defined 
alignment of the footpath does not follow the surfaced foot-way at the relevant location." 

 Natural England 19/02/2020  

"No objection  

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have significant adverse impacts on statutorily protected nature conservation sites or 
landscapes. 

Natural England’s generic advice on other natural environment issues is set out at Annex A. 

European sites  
Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have likely significant effects on statutorily protected sites and has no objection to 
the proposed development. To meet the requirements of the Habitats Regulations, we 
advise you to record your decision that a likely significant effect can be ruled out.  

Page 4 of 20

Page 24

Agenda Item 9



Sites of Special Scientific Interest  
Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have likely significant effects on statutorily protected sites and has no objection to 
the proposed development. 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest Impact Risk Zones 
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 requires local planning authorities to consult Natural England on “Development in or 
likely to affect a Site of Special Scientific Interest” (Schedule 4, w). Our SSSI Impact Risk 
Zones are a GIS dataset designed to be used during the planning application validation 
process to help local planning authorities decide when to consult Natural England on 
developments likely to affect a SSSI. The dataset and user guidance can be accessed from 
the data.gov.uk website. 

Further general advice on the consideration of protected species and other natural 
environment issues is provided at Annex A. 

We would be happy to comment further should the need arise but if in the meantime you 
have any 
queries please do not hesitate to contact us.  

For any queries regarding this letter, for new consultations, or to provide further information 
on this 
consultation please send your correspondences to consultations@naturalengland.org.uk." 

  

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The proposed site of the installation is located at the end of Sandy Gap Lane on a small 
parcel of beach/rough grassland where the shoreline commences, adjacent to the former 
Sandy Gap Cafe building (currently being redeveloped).  The site lies on the boundary of 
Duddon Estuary RAMSAR, Morecambe Bay SAC and Duddon Estuary SSSI. There is some 
dispute as to whether or not the exact position obstructs the PROW as identified by the 
County officer, but separate legislation exists to amend the line of the footpath and this is 
not an impediment to taking a decision under the Planning Act. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Installation of a sculpture to mark the start/finish of the Bay Cycle Way 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 No history revealed for this application. 

 

Page 5 of 20

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



4. Officer Assessment 

Policy 

4.1 The policy background for one off public art installations such as this is quite limited 
locally, relating more to the incorporation of art within wider developments. There are 
elements in other policies however to help guide such decisions. 

4.2 DS2 states generally (that development should be) “Contributing to the enhancement of 
the character, appearance and historic interest of related landscapes, settlements, street 
scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other environmental assets” 

4.3 DS5 aims to “Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it 
can contribute to design objectives.” 

4.4 DS6 relates to landscaping stating that, “Landscaping should be viewed as an integral 
part of the design process and should include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, 
lighting and public art where appropriate.” 

4.5 N1 states that “Land use proposals should protect and enhance where appropriate, local 
landscape character (...)”. 

4.6 In national policy, within the context of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), it 
is stated that public art "contributes to strong, vibrant communities through the creation of 
quality places and relating health, social and cultural well- being benefits" 

4.7 Beyond the immediate design, placement and public art contribution, the installation is a 
way marker for the beginning/end of a regional cycle route, a potential visitor attraction.  
This inherently promotes recreational cycling which is beneficial for health and well being, 
and further encourages the reduced reliance and use of private vehicles, a key component 
in local and national policy. 

Existing Landscape 

4.8 The highly diverse landscape of the Borough contributes to its local distinctiveness, and 
is an important factor in attracting people to come and invest in the area. Much of the 
coastline is designated nationally and internationally for its nature conservation importance 
and consists of a range of mudflats, shingle and pebble beaches, soft cliffs and dune 
systems. 

4.9 The Cumbria County Council Landscape Toolkit defines the immediate area as ‘Bay And 
Estuary - Intertidal Flats’.  It defines a a vision of conserving the openness by avoiding 
development that harms landscape character, but suggests as a feature the provision of 
information and interpretation of wildlife and other related interest.  Such related interest can 
be interpreted as including the sculpture and the associated information of the coastal cycle 
way proposed.  Recent approval was also given for the provision of new directional signs 
and notice/information displays located on the adjacent sea wall. 

 

Page 6 of 20

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



 

4.10 Whilst the coastline is generally undeveloped, there are pockets of development dotted 
along the coast, such as the former Roundhouse building and playground further along the 
coast to the south.  The immediate vicinity of the site includes a a small public car park, a 
single storey building, (formerly a cafe and currently being renovated), a playground, and 
the edge of Furness Golf Club with a flag pole in the corner of the site. A rough track leads 
from the highway directly onto the foreshore. In that sense the immediate area is not 
unspoiled open coastline, rather a small developed enclave which leads to the beach. 

Sculpture 

4.11 The wider proposal involves a sculpture at either end of the route (the other in Glasson 
Dock, Lancaster and subject to separate consent), designed to represent a bicycle wheel.  It 
is to be constructed from a lacquered and galvanised steel, with annotated panels between 
the spokes to provide information about the route and the local area on either side of the 
wheel.  It is approximately 2.5m high, and positioned parallel to the foreshore, so that the 
main view is from Sandy Gap Lane. In this position it will also be less visible in views along 
the beach.  The chosen location is intended to have the sea as a backdrop in photographs 
which will help promote the route and the area on social media etc. 

Public Right of Way (PROW) 

4.12 A public right of way runs along the foreshore, and is a material consideration.  Whilst it 
is not proposed to interfere with the existing built path, it has come to light that the legal 
order behind the PROW is aligned differently to the tarmac path on the ground.  As a result, 
the path, on plan, runs directly through the location of the sculpture.  The applicant plans to 
apply to divert the official route so that it aligns with the actual path, which seems the 
common sense approach.  This will need to occur under the Highways Act as the diversion 
is outside of the site edged red rather than through planning legislation.   

4.13 The grant of planning permission does not entitle developers to obstruct a public right of 
way.  The diversion or stopping up of footpaths, bridleways and restricted byways is a 
separate process which must be carried out before the paths are affected by the 
development. It cannot be assumed that because planning permission has been granted 
that an Order under section 257 will invariably be made or confirmed. Development, in so far 
as it affects a right of way, must not be started and the PROW should be kept open for 
public use, unless or until the necessary order has come into effect.  In subsequent 
conversations to the initial comment received, the PROW officer at CCC has indicated there 
is a low probability of objection to any subsequent diversion application, but until the process 
is complete it cannot be guaranteed.  In the event of the diversion not being confirmed, an 
alternate location would have to be sought with a new planning application. 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 20

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



Ecology 

4.14 The application is accompanied by an ecological survey, which describes the ground 
upon which the sculpture will be sited as ‘artificial’, with cobbles formally laid to provide 
vehicular access to the foreshore, to the edge of an area of worn tarmac leading to a 
gravel/hardstanding car park.  A thin layer of sand covers the cobbles.  The survey 
advises the immediate site is unsuitable for use by natterjack toads with no signs of roosting 
by wildfowl.  The sculpture would not prevent migration through the site given the small 
footprint.  

4.15 It concludes that even without specific mitigation to protect the designated sites during 
construction, there are likely no adverse effects on site integrity and therefore likely 
significant adverse effects can be screened out without a full Appropriate Assessment.  
Natural England also advise that to meet the requirements of the Habitats Regulations that 
likely significant effects can be screened out.  It is proposed the Council adopt this position 
and screen out such impact without further assessment.  

4.16 A construction management condition is proposed to ensure that no harm or pollution, 
such as from inappropriate storage of materials etc, results to the designated sites during 
construction. 

Representations 

4.17 A number of objections have been received, with various areas of concern. General 
design and impact on landscape appear to be the main themes raised, with other side 
issues such as incorrect application type, and the potential to create noise.  The sculpture is 
not considered to be an advertisement in this instance, regardless of the inclusion of the 
makers name.   

4.18 In terms of noise, it is not possible to conclude if it will act as a wind harp as claimed in 
the objection and make an unacceptable level of noise, short of commissioning an acoustic 
expert.  Other factors have to be considered however, one such is the location in an open 
area with a commercial use adjacent.  No dwellings are located in close proximity, so even if 
there is some wind produced noise there is no evidence it would be unacceptable or a 
nuisance.  The gaps within the sculpture are fairly wide rather than narrow or tube like which 
are often used in sculptures when wind is harnessed to produce sound, rather than the more 
open design specified. 

4.19 The more primary issues raised relate to landscape impact, appearance/design and 
visual amenity, which are all linked to some degree.  In assessing this impact, consideration 
of the immediate area is a key consideration.  The current state is not particularly attractive, 
with a disused cafe in a state of refurbishment currently, with a old unattractive sea wall and 
a mix of rough surfacing leading onto the foreshore.  It is not an unspoiled landscape, as 
can be found elsewhere, due to other existing development.  The refurbishment of the cafe, 
provision of information panels and directional signs will help regenerate the area to some 
degree. Promoting the cycle way and thus attracting visitors may help speed up this process 
of regeneration. 

 

Page 8 of 20

Page 28

Agenda Item 9



4.20 Whilst questions of scale have been raised, the 2.5m height is not significant in the 
wider landscape, though it is prominent in the immediate local setting.  When seen 
alongside the existing cafe development, parked cars and other nearby activity, it is not 
considered to be overbearing or dominant. Whist design is highly subjective, the provision of 
a sculpture will raise awareness and prominence of the cycle path, and also provide a point 
of interest in an already developed section of the coastline.  This is seen as beneficial to 
promoting cycling and the associated health and well being and should assist in 
regenerating this small section of coastline which at present does not make a positive 
contribution to the landscape.  It should also provide additional custom for the cafe when re-
opened. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 Such installations are commonly divisive given the subjective nature of art/sculptures.  
However, the scale in a wider context is minimal and when considered locally it should 
provide a focal point of interest alongside the cafe, improving the public realm over the 
unattractive appearance at present.  Any landscape impact is considered minimal given it is 
within a developed section, thus avoiding a more isolated open position which may be 
considered to be more harmful.  

5.2 There may be regeneration benefits, including job creation, from promoting the cycle way 
in that it may speed up the renovation of the adjacent building to provide suitable visitor 
facilities. 

5.3 It is not considered to clash with the approved development adjacent to the site given the 
differing nature and appearance of that signage.  Encouraging the use of cycles is a key 
benefit and raising awareness of a local cycle path should help promote this aim.  It has 
been shown through ecological assessment that no likely significant effects will result.  The 
proposal is therefore considered to accord with local and national policy. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 
with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 

 

Page 9 of 20

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



 

Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 04/02/20 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
3390-100 Rev A 
001-CB-ARTS Rev B 
Envirotech Ecological Report ref: 5982 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
3. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Construction 
Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. 
The Statement shall provide for all of the following: 
i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors, 
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials, 
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development, 
iv. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and 
facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
v. wheel washing facilities where vehicles will enter the site, 
vi. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, 
vii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and from 
construction works. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of minimising the impact upon local environmental amenity. 
 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

Page 10 of 20

Page 30

Agenda Item 9



 

 The grant of planning permission does not entitle developers to obstruct a public right 
of way (PROW).  The diversion or stopping up of footpaths, bridleways and restricted 
byways is a separate process under highway legislation which must be carried out 
before the paths are affected by the development. It cannot be assumed that 
because planning permission has been granted that an Order under section 257 will 
invariably be made or confirmed. Development, in so far as it affects a right of way, 
must not be started and the right of way should be kept open for public use, unless or 
until the necessary order has come into effect. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

   

  

  

  

Page 11 of 20

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



2020/0091

Page 12 of 20

Page 32

Agenda Item 9



DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

SCALE

DATE

REVISION

-CB ARTS SHALL HAVE NO RESPONSIBILITY  FOR ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENT OTHER 
THAN FOR THAT WHICH IT WAS PREPARED AND ISSUED.
-ALL DIMENSIONS SHOULD BE CHECKED ON SITE.
-DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.
-ANY DRAWING ERRORS OR DIVERGENCES SHOULD BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION  OF CC ARTS
AT THE ADDRESS SHOWN BELOW:

LOW MILL BUSINESS PARK, MORECAMBE  ROAD, ULVERSTON , CUMBRIA, LA129EE - 01229 588580

PAGE

REVISION DETAILS:

FINISHING NOTES:

FABRICATION NOTES:

NAME/DATE: SIGNATURE:

NAME/DATE: SIGNATURE:

1-10 @ A1

07/05/19

1 of 1

Patinated lacquer finish.
Patern to be highlighted, see CB at this point
in the process.

-001-CB-ARTS

BAY CYCLE WAY MARKERS

B

29/04/19 - re design based on client meeting.
07/05/19 - Addition of logo to centre of wheel.

2517

FRONT ELEVATION

1500

237

250

100

1297

2500

133.29

250

1500

SIDE ELEVATION

PLAN VIEW

Map and information
about the route

2020/0091

Page 13 of 20

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 9



Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies

Note to Members

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the
agenda today.

National Planning Policy Framework 2018

NPPF-092
To provide the social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community
needs, planning policies and decisions should:

a) plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities (such
as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public
houses and places of worship) and other local services to enhance the sustainability of
communities and residential environments;

b) take into account and support the delivery of local strategies to improve health, social
and cultural well-being for all sections of the community;

c) guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services, particularly
where this would reduce the community's ability to meet its day-to-day needs;

d) ensure that established shops, facilities and services are able to develop and
modernise, and are retained for the benefit of the community; and

e) ensure an integrated approach to considering the location of housing, economic uses
and community facilities and services.

NPPF-127
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

Page 14 of 20

Page 34

Agenda Item 9



c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local
facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users (Planning
policies for housing should make use of the Government's optional technical standards
for accessible and adaptable housing, where this would address an identified need for

such properties. Policies may also make use of the nationally described space standard,
where the need for an internal space standard can be justified); and where crime and
disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community
cohesion and resilience.

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031

Policy C2 - Development and the Coast
Development in a coastal location will only be permitted where:

a) There will be no unacceptable harm to natural coastal processes, including increasing
the risk of flooding, coastal erosion and instability;

b) There will be no unacceptable harm to habitats, species, geodiversity, designated
sites and the historic environment;

c) The capacity of the coast to form a natural sea defence or adjust to changes in
conditions without risk to life or property will not be prejudiced;

d) There will not be an increased need for additional sea walls or other civil engineering
works (defence structures) for coastal protection purposes except where necessary to
protect existing investment;

e) The open character of the undeveloped coast is maintained, with the existing
landscape character of the site respected and reinforced;

f) Local fisheries will not be prejudiced;
Page 15 of 20

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



g) There will be no unacceptable adverse effect on people's enjoyment of natural
landscape character; and

h) There will be no adverse effect on recreational activities at the coast.

Opportunities to improve access to the coast will be sought where possible and where
the above criteria can be met.

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be
approved wherever possible

The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and
environmental gains for the Borough.

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether:

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or

b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that
development should be restricted.

Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by:

Page 16 of 20

Page 36

Agenda Item 9



a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education
facilities;

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity;

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities
infrastructure;

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light,
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels;

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly
privacy, security and natural light;

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed
development;

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other
environmental assets;

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity;

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible;

j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production;

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk;

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3.

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local
Plan objectives by alternative means.

Page 17 of 20

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



Policy DS5 - Design
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they

a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning
Documents;

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their
setting;

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it;

d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment;

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas,
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed;

f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well-
structured building layout;

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character;

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally
sourced wherever possible;

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees,
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists,
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place;

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion
and public safety;

k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can
contribute to design objectives;

Page 18 of 20

Page 38

Agenda Item 9



l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and
people with disabilities;

m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale;

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the
provision of appropriate roof pitches.

Policy DS6 - Landscaping
Landscaping should be viewed as an integral part of the design process and should
include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, lighting and public art where
appropriate.

A Landscaping Scheme and maintenance regime will be required as part of a full
planning application. This is particularly relevant where development will have a
significant impact upon the surrounding environment or where the development
occupies a site in a prominent location. The Cumbria Landscape Character Toolkit
should be used as a baseline tool to determine the impacts of new development on the
landscape and the type of landscaping and/or mitigation to be put in place.

All soft landscaping, including all existing trees, shrubs and planted areas should be
shown along with details of any protective measures proposed. Details of new trees,
shrubs and planted areas in terms of species, density, size, spacing and position should
be included. Native species should be used with decorative species used only for accent
purposes in support of other design objectives. Native planting is particularly important
in areas adjacent to natural habitats e.g. watercourses.

Proposals must demonstrate that any soft landscaping proposed will have a positive
visual impact upon the area and is able to survive in its environment.

In terms of hard landscaping, materials used must be of a colour and texture appropriate
to the locally distinctive character of the area, be durable, practical for the proposed use
under a variety of weather conditions and incorporate permeable surfaces to alleviate
run off.

Page 19 of 20

Page 39

Agenda Item 9



Suitable maintenance regimes for soft and hard schemes will be the subject of planning
conditions or unilateral undertakings as appropriate.

Policy N1 - Protecting and enhancing landscape character
Land use proposals should protect and enhance where appropriate, local landscape
character, as defined by contemporary adopted local landscape character guidance,
currently the Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and Toolkit. In addition, major
land use proposals will require an assessment of the effects of the proposed
development on landscape character and visual effects at the time of submission.

Where new development will impact upon the character of the landscape, such impact
will need to be minimised and priority will be given to protecting and enhancing the
landscape's distinct assets. Where there is loss or damage to the assets, the applicant
must submit a statement demonstrating that this is unavoidable e.g. the development
cannot be sited elsewhere due to operational requirements.  In cases such as these, the
unavoidable damage must be mitigated, and unavoidable loss must be compensated
for, so that there is no net loss in resources.

High protection will be given to the undeveloped coast in order to maintain its openness,
tranquillity, heritage and nature conservation value and to maintain the Borough's
recreation and tourism appeal.

High protection will also be given to the setting of the Lake District National Park in order
to maintain the valued views to and from this nationally designated area, its tranquillity
and its attractiveness to tourists.

Measures to enhance the character of the Borough's landscape will be supported, with
particular importance given to the following:

a) Improved access to the landscape for recreation and tourism, including managed
access to the undeveloped coast.

b) The regeneration of unsightly brownfield sites, particularly former industrial sites.

c) Increase in tree and woodland cover where such planting complements the scale of
the landscape.

d) Enhancement of the nature conservation value of the landscape.

Page 20 of 20

Page 40

Agenda Item 9



 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

      4th August 2020 

 
DEFERRED BOOKLET 

 

 
PLANNING APPLICATION FOR DECISION 

 
 

Deferred from 14th July 2020 
 
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 

 
The applications within this report have been submitted for determination under 

the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 

All applications in this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be moved 
“Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for the 
Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994. Any such motion needs to 
be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 8th August, 
1995). All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the Committee and will not 
be subject to confirmation by Council. 

 
The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of background 

papers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Development 
Services Manager 

               (Planning and Enforcement)  

Page 1 of 28

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



B07/2019/0778
Planning Committee

4th August 2020

Application Number : B07/2019/0778 Date Valid :11/11/2019

Address : Proposed housing site Crompton
Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Case Officer : Charles Wilton

Proposal : Application for a Minor Material Amendment following the grant of planning
permission B07/2018/0089 (Construction of 11, 3 and 4 bed houses including roads and
sewers) to provide a revised access to plots 6 and 7 involving a new access onto Abbey
Road and which shall carry the proposed public right of way.

Ward : Dalton South Ward Parish : Dalton Town with Newton Parish
Council

Applicant : Moorsolve Pension Scheme Agent :

Statutory Date : 10/02/2020
Recommendation : Approval with
conditions subject to modification/new
unilateral undertaking/ Planning Obligation

Barrow Planning Hub

Relevant Policies and Guidance

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix

Local Plan Policies

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to
sustainable development

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development
Criteria

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI2 - Green Wedges
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features
7. The Biodiversity and Development SPD and Green Infrastructure SPD are both

material considerations

Page 2 of 28

Page 42

Agenda Item 10



Summary of Main Issues

Minor material amendment seeks to add a vehicle access onto Abbey Road to serve two of
the approved dwellings. This has been influenced by design work to achieve the required
public right of way through the development onto Abbey Road. The need to avoid steps and
restrictions on the gradient have meant that only limited additional work is required to
provide a shared private drive. CCC are satisfied that there are no highway safety issues
and the additional work will have limited impact on the Green Wedge.

Non material considerations

None

Response to Publicity and Consultations

Neighbours Consulted

Street Name Properties
Abbey Road Beckansgill House, Brantwood, Ruskinville, Ruskinville Cottage,

The Cedars,
Green Lane Hill Crest,

Responses Support Object Neutral

2 0 2 0

Development advertised on site and in the local press

Organisations Consulted

Consultee
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control)
Cumbria County Council (Highways)
Cumbria County Council (LLFA)
Dalton With Newton Town Council
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy)

Page 3 of 28

Page 43

Agenda Item 10



List of Organisation Responses

Cumbria County Council (PROW) 22/05/20

"The redesign represents a significant improvement on the original from an access
perspective.

It is highly unlikely that the route could be considered for creation as a public bridleway but
it could be considered for creation as a cycle track under the Cycle Tracks Act of 1984.
Other than that, there exists the possibility that it can be created as a public footpath by
landowner dedication under Section 25 of the Highways Act 1980 and, once the associated
legal order is confirmed, the landowner could grant permission for cycles to be ridden on it.

The applicant or the planning authority can formerly request that the route be considered for
creation as a public right of way or cycle track by email to this address:
Countryside.Access@cumbria.gov.uk. However, this would only occur if the route being
offered for creation would form a link between routes with a public status affording at least
the same level of use.

Cumbria Highways have an interest in this as, once it is created as a cycle track or added
to the definitive map as a public right of way, it would be maintainable by them by virtue of
CCC service procedure 08/18."

Cumbria County Council (HA & LLFA) 18/05/20

"Thank you for your re-consultation on 12/5/20 regarding the above Planning Application.

Cumbria County Council as the Local Highways Authority (LHA) and the Lead Local Flood
Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed
below.

The details for the footpath link and driveway access (to remain private) are now
acceptable. The drawings demonstrate that the necessary 120m x 2.4m visibility splays
can be provided. The cross sections and plans show the necessary check-dam locations
for the permeable paving and construction on the private road. It is also noted that to
further protect the highway, a double line of channel drains.

The requirement to restrict vehicle access between the two parts of the site has been met
by adding bollards to the footpath link.

However, there is no indication that the radius kerbs on the footway will be dropped (or
driveway raised) to provide a flush crossing of the footway across the access. Please
provide the detail.

Page 4 of 28

Page 44

Agenda Item 10



It is noted that the soakaway is located more than 5m from the highway as required.
However, the LLFA does not support the use of stone filled soakaways and suggests that
geo-cellular crates are used instead. There is little or no way of inspecting and cleaning a
stone filled soakaway and the void ratio is only about 35% compared to 95% for crates.
The LHA and LLFA has concerns that over time the performance of the soakaway will
diminish and could eventually increase surface water flood risk to Abbey Road.

I can confirm that the Highway Authority and LLFA object to the drainage design
(soakaway) of the access road require details of the dropped crossing for the footway. We
therefore cannot recommend that Condition 9 is satisfied."

Cumbria County Council (HA & LLFA) 02/04/20

“I can confirm that the visibility splay as shown at the revised location meet the standard for
a 40mph road and would be acceptable to the Local Highway Authority.  A few of points you
should bear in mind in any detailed application:

•       We would want radius kerbs as shown on the drawing and dropped kerbs to highlight
the presence of a drive, no need for tactile paving at this location;

•       Details of the returns of the retaining walls and the measures to prevent surface water
run-off running off the field and driveway onto the highway (Surface water strategy
updated?)

•       Surface of road / construction – would suggest permeable block paving but careful
attention to the gradient is needed (max 1:12.5 for first 10m)

•       There can be no through route for traffic from these two dwellings to the other part of
the development (ie. no link onto Crompton Drive) – you’ll need to clarify and show
measures to prevent this;

•       The private driveway needs to be a pedestrian route for all, not just as a driveway.”

Cumbria County Council (Highways & Lead Local Flood Authority) 22/11/2019

“Cumbria County Council as the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority
(LLFA) has reviewed the submitted material and has the following comments that require
clarification and further details to be submitted by the applicant:

1. The visibility splay has not been shown. Please provide a drawing showing how the
necessary splay of 120m x 2.4m can be achieved (DMRB value for a 40mph road). If the
applicant can demonstrate through a speed survey that the actual 85%ile is less , then we
will be willing to consider a lower standard;

2. There are no details of the proposed construction / surfacing of the access road, also
confirmation that it is to remain private. The LHA would not adopt this road;

Page 5 of 28

Page 45

Agenda Item 10



3. Please clarify waste collection proposals – the access road is not suitable for refuse
vehicles;

4. Please clarify the measures to prevent the access track becoming a conveyance route
for surface water which would flood onto Abbey Road, or measures to shed the water onto
the field;

5. Clarify details of the proposed treatment of the existing highway boundary wall. Is it to
be lowered in the vicinity of the access to improve visibility? There is some concern that
the walls may affect the inter-visibility of pedestrians on the access track and car drivers
turning into it from Abbey Road and vice-versa. Please provide vertical and horizontal
visibility splay diagrams;

6. Confirmation that the gradient of the access road over the first 6m is not greater than
1:10 and that the first 5m are of a bound surface.”

Dalton With Newton Town Council 29/11/2019

"The Town Council have no objections"

Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 26.06.20

“The proposed access is within the Dalton South West Green Wedge. The Draft Green
Infrastructure Strategy SPD states that this Green Wedge is important in protecting the
transitional landscape character and setting of Abbey Road as the main approach into
Dalton from Barrow. Policy GI2 of the Local Plan sets out a number of requirements for
proposals within Green Wedges, including that they provide visual relief, physical contrast
and visual or physical separation between settlements and neighbouring development
areas.    Proposals must also maintain or enhance the open character of the Green Wedge.
It is therefore important that the proposed new access road does not undermine the role
and character of the Green Wedge.

It is proposed that the access road will be used as a private access for two properties. The
key impact on the Green Wedge would appear to be the potential loss of green
infrastructure to make way for the new access along the frontage of Abbey Road. If wildlife
features such as trees or hedges are to be lost, this should be justified and the features
should be replaced in accordance with Policy N4 of the Local Plan. New suitable planting
could also help to maintain the landscape character and visual relief of the Green Wedge.
Policy N4 states that landscaping proposals should include planting of suitable species for
the location to enhance the landscape of the site and its surroundings as appropriate. It is
noted that the access to Ruskinville to the south, albeit smaller than the proposed access,
appears to maintain the landscape character along this stretch of Abbey Road.”

Page 6 of 28

Page 46

Agenda Item 10



Officers Report

Consideration of this application was deferred at your last meeting with a minded to refuse
resolution. The worded recorded is as follows:

To defer consideration of this application since the Committee had been minded to refuse
the application as the formation of a new vehicular access would harm the character of the
green wedge and would thereby conflict with Local Plan Policy GI2

If Committee wishes to proceed with this decision it will be necessary to state how that
harm will occur and as a result of what. For example;

1. Is the concern related to forming an opening in the wall and the additional retaining
walls needed?

2. Is it the private access drive which is shown to cross the field or the loss of trees in
the vicinity of the proposed access?

I have drafted a reason for refusal which includes all of these components for you to
consider. However members need to be aware that an opening and surfaced footpath will
be required as part of the public footpath creation works. For most of its width the private
drive would be 3.5m wide as opposed to 1.8m for the footpath

Draft Reason For Refusal

“The formation of the vehicular access would harm the character of the Green Wedge as a
result of introducing additional urban features namely the formation of the opening,
associated retaining walls, and access drive which would appear discordant features in the
semi rural landscape identified as a green wedge. The harm would be exacerbated by loss
of trees which have some group value contributing to the overall greenery and the
additional opening up of the approved development in views from Abbey Road. This harm
is considered to be significantly greater than would occur compared to a level pedestrian
access due to the increased width of a vehicular access. Approval would thereby conflict
with Local Plan Policy GI2 which seeks to protect green wedges as spaces which provide
visual relief and a sense of separation between settlements”

My original report follows on:

1. Site and Locality

1.1 The application relates to a housing development currently under construction. It
benefits from planning permission ref 2018/0089 which permitted the erection of 11
dwellings accessed from Crompton Drive. This greenfield site was allocated for housing in
the Local Plan as site SHL096 [Table 7: Housing Allocations in Barrow Borough].
This includes the following description ' Greenfield site within the Green Wedge adjoining
the urban boundaries'

Page 7 of 28

Page 47

Agenda Item 10



2. Proposal Details

2.1 Application for a Minor Material Amendment following the grant of planning permission
B07/2018/0089 (Construction of 11, 3 and 4 bed houses including roads and sewers) to
provide a revised access to plots 6 and 7 involving a new access onto Abbey Road and
which shall carry the proposed public right of way.

3. Relevant History

3.1 02/1993/0776 Land off Green Lane/Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Outline
application for residential development Appcond 15/03/1994

3.2 02/1997/0114 Land off Green Lane/Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
Residential development (Outline) Appcond 21/05/1997

3.3 1984/0816 Buena Vista, Green Lane, Dalton-in-Furness Extension to provide swimming
pool Appcond 05/10/1984

3.4 1990/0101 Land between Hill Crest and Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Residential
development for one or two dwellings (Outline) Refused 20/04/1990

3.5 57/2002/0109 Rose Lyn Green Lane Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8NA Erection of a
kitchen, bedroom and conservatory extension to existing bungalow Approved 27/02/2002

3.6 57/2004/0235 Rose Lyn Green Lane Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8NA Erection of
double garage Appcond 29/04/2004

3.7 B07/2018/0089 Proposed housing site at land Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria Construction of 11 No. 3 and 4 bed houses including roads and sewers.
APPCOND 12/12/2018

3.8 B13/2013/0175 Crompton Drive (opposite 19-25) Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Erection of
three detached, two bedroomed bungalows. Appcond 11-JUL-2013

3.9 B28/2013/0511 Land at Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application for
discharge of condition(s) No. 4 (Road Adoption scheme), No. 6 (Landscaping) and No. 8
(laying of power cables) following grant of planning permission B13/2013/0175 Erection of
three detached bedroomed bungalows. Appcond 15-OCT-2013

3.10 B28/2019/0247 Proposed housing site at land Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria Submission of details requiring approval by condition no.5 (surface water drainage
system), no.6 (drainage management), no. 7 (Landscaping scheme) no. 8
(carriageway/footway design & construction details) for planning application B07/2018/0089
-erection of 11 dwellings. APPCOND 06/08/2019

Page 8 of 28

Page 48

Agenda Item 10



3.11 B31/2013/0597 Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application for a Non
Material Amendment following grant of planning permission B13/2013/0175 (Erection of
three detached, two bedroom bungalows) to allow change of gable to a hip roof and the use
of a different brick type. Approved 18-NOV-2013

4. Officer Assessment

4.1 The approved scheme shows all 11 dwellings accessed via an extension of Crompton
Drive. The majority of this road was shown to be laid out in accordance with CCC adoption
standards and terminating in a hammerhead. This remains unchanged. However the
access to the last two dwellings was shown via a private shared drive off the hammerhead.
The proposed change relates to the access to these last two properties. A public right of
way was also included running through the site so as to connect Crompton Drive with
Abbey Road.

4.2 The proposal involves adding a shared drive onto Abbey Road for the last two plots.
This is shown to be 4.1m wide for the first 10m narrowing to 3.5m for the remainder of its
length. The main issues are highway safety, relationship with the proposed Public Right of
Way, and the Green Wedge, and the treatment of bio-diversity. Taking these in turn:

Highway Safety

4.3 Local Plan policy requires that a site is served by a satisfactory access that would not
impact unduly upon the highway network [policy H7(e)]. CCC as highway authority were
consulted and who initially objected (Nov 2019). However this objection was subsequently
withdrawn with CCC commenting;

4.4 The details for the footpath link and driveway access (to remain private) are now
acceptable. The drawings demonstrate that the necessary 120m x 2.4m visibility splays can
be provided. The requirement to restrict vehicle access between the two parts of the site
has been met by adding bollards to the footpath link [19/05/20]

4.5 However there remained objections re the proposed soakaway and also further
information was required re the pavement crossing. Further changes led CCC to confirm
that the changes addressed the requirements of the LHA and LLFA [CCC 22/05/2020]
The development would therefore accord with criterion e) of Local Plan policy H7. Access
for larger vehicles and access to their garages will remain via Crompton Drive

Page 9 of 28

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



Relationship with required public right of way

4.6 The 106 obligation which forms part of the original permission imposes the following
requirements:

4.7 Form a footpath link from Crompton Drive to Abbey Road in general accordance with the
plan attached prior to occupation of the 6th dwelling and in accordance with details of its
precise route, gradient, surfacing and drainage [obligation 2.1]

4.8 To dedicate the footpath as a Public Right of Way via a footpath creation agreement with
CCC as Highway Authority under Section 25 of the Highways Act or via a suitable
alternative procedure agreed by CCC (obligation 2.2)

4.9 Discussions with CCC concluded that the PROW would need to be to an adoptable
standard. This controls such things as gradients, steps etc and requires a certain level of
surfacing and drainage. As a consequence the drive adopts a loop rather that a straight
climb up the hillside. This accords with the design parameter laid down under para 2.1 of
the obligation.

Impact upon the Green Wedge

4.10 The site of the houses was removed from the Green Wedge as part of the residential
allocation in the new Local Plan. However the remainder of the field down to Abbey Road, a
distance of 50m was retained within the wedge. As a consequence the proposed drive
would pass through the Green Wedge. Local Plan policy GI2 states that proposals within
Green Wedges will be supported provided:

a) they provide visual relief/physical separation between settlements
b) they maintain or enhance the open character of the green wedge
c) enhance bio diversity where possible
d) maintain or enhance is value as a setting for recreation
e) protect the setting of heritage assets

4.11 The site boundary with Abbey Road is defined by a limestone wall approx 2m high and
which also acts in part as a retaining wall. This is because the field rises away from Abbey
Road. An opening would need to be formed in the wall to accommodate the access. Trees
grow along the top of the wall for the full width of the site. Those growing in the vicinity of
the proposed access are shown to be removed. A tree survey accompanies the application.
This identifies a total of 6 trees and groups growing along the top of the wall as follows:

Page 10 of 28

Page 50

Agenda Item 10



T1 sycamore height 18m - well balanced canopy with good vigour
G1 group of wych elm, ash, sycamore and hawthorn height 9.5m - low value group of multi
stemmed trees
T2 Ash height 14m - Twinned stemmed from base - poor vigour
T3 Sycamore height 16m- prominent within landscape, canopy appears on good vigour
T4 Ash height 15m- poor vigour
T5 Ash height 15m- poor etiolated form.

4.12 Of the above the access is shown to impact partly on G1 (not T1 to T5) removing 5
trees from the group - approx half. These are lost in the immediate vicinity of the proposed
access. This group of trees has however been categorised as a low value group in the Tree
Survey carried out to the relevant British Standard. The wall and trees create a sense of
enclosure to this part of Abbey Road. The proposed access will introduce a more open
element however this effect will be localised. Neither would it necessarily conflict with green
wedge policy which focuses on maintaining or enhancing open character. The trees are not
subject of a preservation order.

4.13 The Planning Policy section have commented that;

the access to Ruskinville to the south, albeit smaller than the proposed access, appears to
maintain the landscape character along this stretch of Abbey Road'.

4.14 I interpret this to mean that accesses are not necessarily out of character in this
location. The PROW accords with criteria d) of policy GI2 in that it enhances the value of
the green wedge as a setting for recreation. The private drive will facilitate the delivery of
the PROW through achieving necessary gradients though this is not necessarily dependent
on a vehicular access. The provision of the PROW would dictate an opening in the wall to
accommodate a 2m wide footpath Overall there will be some change in character but of a
localised nature. The approved development higher up the hill will become slightly more
visible.

4.15 While the trees have been categorised as being of low value in the Tree Survey there is
still a requirement to address their loss in terms of their bio diversity value and which is
proposed to be addressed via condition.

Representations received

4.16 Two objections have been received both on highway safety grounds. However CCC as
Highway Authority have been consulted and who have removed their earlier objection
following revisions made by the applicant's civil engineer.

Page 11 of 28

Page 51

Agenda Item 10



106 Obligation

4.17 The original permission was accompanied by a Unilateral Undertaking under Section
106 of the Act. This sought to deliver two things. The first was to ensure that the route
through the site was formally dedicated as a Public Right of Way. The second required a
financial contribution to a scheme to improve the junction of Long Lane and Newton Road.
The Undertaking was specific to the approved application and therefore a new
undertaking/modification of the existing will be required. The financial contribution is likely to
have been paid before the new Undertaking is prepared

5. Conclusions

5.1 CCC no longer object to the proposed vehicle access and on that basis it would be
difficult to justify refusal on highway safety grounds. The access would pass through a
Green Wedge however this should not conflict with policies which seek to protect the open
character of Green Wedges. It would facilitate the required PROW which accords with
policy to enhance Green Wedges as a setting for recreation.

5.2 In addition the proposed shared private drive is designed to carry the required PROW
which is a requirement of the original planning permission.

6. Recommendation

I recommend that;

A. on completion of an obligation under Section 106 of the Act (and which may be a
unilateral undertaking) to secure the requirements of the original Section 106 in relation to
the creation and dedication of a Public Right of Way and the requirements of the original
106 in relation to the financial contribution unless payment has already been made,
then

B. planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions;
1. The Development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning
with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as amended by section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with
the planning permission dated 12/12/2018 and referenced 6/2018/0089 with the exception
of the means of access to the two most western plots which can be accessed in
accordance with the following plans;
Private Road Layout and Section ref CFC 18030 001 A1 H
Private Link Drive Layout and Section - CFC 18030-002 A1 D

Page 12 of 28

Page 52

Agenda Item 10



Private Link Drive Visibility ref CFC 18030 003 A1 C
Tree Survey ref P.1328.20.01

Reason

In order to link the permission to the submitted application.

3. No opening shall be formed in the retaining wall which defines the site's boundary with
Abbey Road until structural engineers details of the proposed masonry wall returns and the
fixed bollard shown on 'Private Link Drive Access Visibility ref CFC 18030 003 A1 C' have
been submitted to and approved in writing with the Planning Authority and which shall
include the cladding of the returns in natural limestone. The returns shall be completed in
accordance with the approved details prior to any occupation of any dwelling which the
access serves and the limestone cladding shall be permanently retained for the life time of
the development hereby approved.

Reason

In the interests of public safety and to ensure materials are sensitive to the location as
required by Local Plan policy DS5.

4. No trees shall be felled other than those trees shown to be felled in the immediate vicinity
of the proposed access on 'Tree Survey ref P.1328.20.01'

Reason

To protect trees which make a positive contribution to the public amenities of the area and
to accord with Local Plan policy DS5 which requires developments to integrate and where
possible conserve the adjoining natural environment.

5. The shared access drive hereby approved shall have been completed in accordance with
the details listed under condition 2 above including surfacing and drainage together with the
installation of the fixed bollard at the head of the drive prior to the occupation of either of the
two houses served via the shared private drive.

Reason

To ensure that no surface water or materials are discharged onto the public highway and to
ensure that the access is limited to serving two dwellings.

Page 13 of 28

Page 53

Agenda Item 10



6. The fixed bollard referred to under conditions 2 and 5 above shall be permanently
retained.

Reason

To ensure that the private shared access hereby approved is limited to serve two dwellings
and does not form a connection with the wider area for which it is not designed

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order, 2015(as amended) (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order
with or without modification) no walls, fences or any other permanent development shall be
erected on any part of the private shared drive which connects plots 6 and 7 to Abbey Road
nor must the surfacing of the private shared drive be changed to any other material.

Reason

The private shared drive forms a turning facility for both houses. The drainage of the drive
has been calculated based on its permeable construction.

8. The land identified as 'open space' on the site layout plan approved under permission
6/2018/0089 and referenced 'Crompton Drive SK 3a' shall remain outside any residential
curtilage.

Reason

In order to protect the open character of the green wedge and to accord with Local Plan
policy GI2.

9. Prior to the felling of the trees identified for felling by 'Tree Survey ref P.1328.20.01' a
scheme of compensatory habitat of at least equal value shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Planning Authority including a programme for its installation and
which shall be additional to those required by condition no 11 of planning permission
2018/0089. The approved measures shall be retained for the life time of the development.

Reason

To secure the measures contained within the application which seek to achieve
improvements in bio diversity, to accord with Local Plan policy N3, to accord with the
Biodiversity and Development SPD .

Page 14 of 28

Page 54

Agenda Item 10



Informative

Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building Regulations
may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning Officer before any
such works are carried out.

This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please contact
your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to how to proceed.

_________________________________________________________________________

Page 15 of 28

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



2019/0778

Page 15 of 27Page 16 of 28

Page 56

Agenda Item 10



2019/0778

Page 16 of 27Page 17 of 28

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 10



2019/0778

Page 17 of 27Page 18 of 28

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 10



2019/0778

Page 18 of 27Page 19 of 28

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 10



2019/0778

Page 19 of 27Page 20 of 28

Page 60

Agenda Item 10



2019/0778

Page 20 of 27Page 21 of 28

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 10



2019/0778

Page 21 of 27Page 22 of 28

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 10



 
 
Appendices of Policies 

 
 
Note to Members 

 
 
Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 
agenda today. 

 
 
 
Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-20 

 
 
Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 
approved wherever possible. 

 
The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 
environmental gains for the Borough. 

 
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 

 
 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 

 
 
b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 
development should be restricted. 

 
 
 
Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 

 
 

Page 23 of 28

Page 63

Agenda Item 10



a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 
facilities; 

 
 
b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 

 
 
c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 
infrastructure; 

 
d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 

 
 
e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 
privacy, security and natural light; 

 
 
f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 
development; 

 
 
g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 
environmental assets; 

 
 
h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 

 
 
i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 

 
 
j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 

 
 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 

 
 
l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 

 
 
m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 

 
 
Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 
Plan objectives by alternative means. 

 
 
 
 

Page 24 of 28

Page 64

Agenda Item 10



Policy DS5 - Design 
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they: 

 
 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 
Documents; 

 
 
b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 
setting; 

 
 
c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 

 
 
d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 

 
 
e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 

 
 
f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 
structured building layout; 

 
 
g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 

 
 
h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 
sourced wherever possible; 

 
 
i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 

 
 
j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 
and public safety; 

 
 
k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 
contribute to design objectives; 

 
 
l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 
people with disabilities;

Page 25 of 28

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



 
 
m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 

 
 
n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 

 
 
o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 
provision of appropriate roof pitches. 

 
 
 
 
 
Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure 
The Council, through the preparation and adoption of the Green Infrastructure Strategy 
SPD, Masterplans and Development Briefs will identify and promote the creation, 
enhancement and protection of a Green Infrastructure Framework designed to maintain, 
enhance, expand and connect a network of natural and man-made green and blue 
spaces together along with the project focus necessary to secure and implement its 
delivery. 

 
 
The Council will work proactively with the community, public sector partners, voluntary 
sector, developers and utility providers to: 

 
 
 
(a)     Ensure that all new development contributes to the protection and enhancement of 
the Borough's distinctive and valued landscape and settlement character implementing a 
network of Green Infrastructure as the context and setting for coherent and locally 
distinctive place making. 

 
 
(b)     Utilise landscape and urban design techniques together to assimilate development 
and its supporting Green Infrastructure into sustainable, attractive multi-functional 
layouts. 

 
 
(c)     Integrate sustainable movement choices at all scales that support domestic, 
leisure and tourism movements around and beyond the Borough to actively encourage 
improved health, fitness and well-being. 

 
 
(d)     Protect and integrate amenity open spaces, playing fields, sports pitches and play 
areas within areas of Green Infrastructure including where a need is demonstrated. 

 
 
(e)     Protect, support and enhance biodiversity by creating inaccessible and well-

Page 26 of 28

Page 66

Agenda Item 10



 
 
connected habitat within and between neighbouring areas that allows wildlife to co-exist 
undisturbed whilst improving peoples accessibility to nature; 

 
 
(f)      Include adaptive measures to help offset climate change including sustainable 
urban drainage (SUDs) management and tree planting to reduce the impact of flooding 
and assist in the cooling of `urban heat islands'; and 

 
 
(g)     Facilitate local food production in allotments, gardens and adjacent agriculture 

 
 
 
Policy GI2 - Green Wedges 
Proposals within or adjoining designated Green Wedges will be supported providing that 
they: 

 
 
 
a)    Provide visual relief, physical contrast and visual or physical separation between 
settlements and neighbouring development  areas; 

 
 
b)    Demonstrate how development would respond to, maintain or enhance the open 
character of the Green Wedge; 

 
 
c)    Enhance the biodiversity value of Green Wedges, where possible; 

 
 
d)    Maintain or enhance its value as a setting for recreation; and 

e)    Protect the setting of heritage assets. 

 
 
 
 
 
Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 
New development should conserve and enhance biodiversity features, and proposals for 
new development should be submitted with landscaping proposals, including a 
Management Plan, which show how existing trees, riparian corridors/trees, hedgerows, 
ponds and other wildlife features will be integrated into the development. Landscaping 
proposals should also include new trees and other planting of suitable species for the 
location to enhance the landscape of the site and its surroundings as appropriate.

Page 27 of 28

Page 67

Agenda Item 10



 
 
 
 
Trees which positively contribute to the visual amenity and environmental value of that 
location will be protected. New development should not result in the loss of or damage 
to ancient woodland or veteran or aged trees outside woodland. 

 
 
Where the conservation of biodiversity features cannot be achieved, the applicant must 
justify their loss. Where the Council is satisfied that the loss is adequately justified, 
replacement trees, hedgerows, ponds and other wildlife features will be required. 

 
 
Proposals which include landscaping proposals, replacement of wildlife features, new 
wildlife features, or which integrate existing wildlife features into the development, will be 
required to demonstrate that measures will be put in place to manage these features as 
appropriate, including the use of suitable legal agreements. 

Page 28 of 28

Page 68

Agenda Item 10



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Planning Committee 
4th August 2020

Removal of Enforcement Notice on Land at Quarry Side/
Quarry Lodge Dalton-in-Furness

 
Report from:  Development Services Manager (Planning & 

Enforcement)

Report Author: J Hipkiss

Wards:  Dalton South

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This matter is reported as the current Delegation arrangement requires a 

committee decision. A request has been received to remove an enforcement 
notice dated from 2007 pertaining to non compliance with a condition to provide 
an access with Adoptable surfacing. Such access was provided in 2012 in 
agreement with Cumbria CC but no application to remove the notice submitted to 
the Borough at that time. The Notice has remained valid since and this application 
has been prompted by the upcoming sale of the house.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that :- 

This Committee agrees to the withdrawal of the Notice, as the road has been 
completed.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 Planning consent was granted for a single house (2000/0245), with condition 5 

requiring that the access road from Lord Street was built in accordance with the 
approved plans. The road was not constructed, and the Authority issued an 
Enforcement Notice in 2007 following occupation of the house when the breach 
occurred.

3.2      In 2012 the works were carried out in conjunction with a further application to build 
a bungalow on an adjacent site. The entire width of the access was finished in 
tarmac and suitably designed to service the 2 dwellings. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 11



3.3     An application has now been submitted to request that the Notice is withdrawn, on 
the basis that the access works have previously been completed and that Cumbria 
Highways do not object to the present arrangement.

4.0 Consultation 
Informal discussions with Cumbria CC Highways have been carried out. There is 
no objection to the arrangement as built.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There is no statutory requirement to withdraw a Notice once complied with, if the 

Authority is of the opinion that the breach could reoccur. In this particular case, 
this could not happen unless the road was removed, which is highly unlikely.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 None relevant

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1.1 Should the Authority choose not to withdraw the Notice there could be legal costs 
arising from an external review.

Legal 
7.1.2 Whilst there is no right of appeal against a refusal to withdraw the Notice there is    

an option of judicial review against the Council, if the request is refused without 
substantive reason(s)

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No, not relevant.

Contact Officers 
Jason Hipkiss   jahipkiss@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Location Plan

Background Documents Available
Name of 
Background 
document 

Where it is available 

BCO/2020/0423 https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATION
SEARCH:1467835304833::NO:::

Page 70

Agenda Item 11

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH:1467835304833::NO:::
https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH:1467835304833::NO:::


Scale 1:500.0

Created 23.07.2020

15m1050

Map Title
Description of map

This copy has been produced specifically for Internal use by Barrow
Borough Council. No further copies may be made. Copyright belongs to
the following.(c) Crown Copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance

Survey LA100016831

PRODUCED FOR INTERNAL COUNCIL
USE ONLY

Page 71

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	9 Planning Applications (Booklet attached)
	2020/0091 Sandy Gap Lane 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans 
	Policies 

	10 Deferred Application (Booklet attached)
	2019/0778 Crompton Drive 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation 
	Plans
	Policies 

	11 Removal of Enforcement Notice on Land at Quarry Side/Quarry Lodge, Dalton-in-Furness
	Quarry Lodge Plan


